


 
“Protecting Public Health and the Environment” 

 
 
Passaic Valley Sewerage Commission     December 24, 2014 
600 Wilson Avenue 
Newark, New Jersey 07105 
 

CLARIFICATION NO. 1 
 

TO ALL HOLDERS OF PVSC REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE  
PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 
1. General question:  Are any expected ODCs or subcontractor contracts permitted to have a 

mark-up applied? If yes, what is the maximum mark-up permitted?  Or rather, how you 
like respondents to express the costs?  

Answer: No Mark-Ups (only direct costs) may be applied to ODCs or subcontractor 
contracts. 

2. RFP page 10 under Task 1 document review:  It states that 20 days are allowed for 
document review. Does this duration include all items in the scope of work stated under 
the task - Review, draft report, assessments, presentations, final report?  

Answer: Yes. 

3. RFP page 14 under Task 3.3:  It is stated that a concept design no more than a 30% is 
required. Would the selected Program Manager have to produce or draft drawings in 
addition to preparing design documents? Or would current design teams prepare the 
concept drawings for bid?  

Answer: It would be the Program Manager’s responsibility to produce drawings and 
prepare design documents using information currently available from the current design 
team (see CD contained in RFP). The Program Manager should develop these drawings 
to a 30% Design for use in defining the Scope of Work for a future RFQ/RFP to hire a 
design professional to complete the final design. The 30% Design should include as a 
minimum: 

 
Verification of existing conditions 
Topographic plans including boring plans 
Demolition drawings, including existing facility tie-in points 
Identification of permits and/or specialty testing required 
Preparation of design memorandum including: major design decisions, design 
parameters and design calculations 
Contact equipment manufacturers and include cut sheets for equipment proposed 
 
Outline Specification that identifies the required technical sections 
 



30% Design Documents for all required disciplines. Include plan views, sections 
and details. 
 
Project Schedule 
 
Phasing Plans which include maintenance of plant operation during construction 
(MOPO). 
 
Project Cost Estimate 

 
4. RFP page 19 under Task 3.8:  It is stated that design review meetings occur at 30, 60 and 

100%, but in Task 3.3 it is stated that design reviews occur at 60, 90 and 100% - could 
you please clarify the design review stages?  

Answer: Design reviews occur at 30, 90 and 100%. 

5. RFP page 21 under Task 4 allowance:  There is a mention of specialized laboratory work. 
Could PVSC expand on that and explain what type of lab work would the Program 
Manager be expected to do? What special certifications are required?  

Answer: Typical examples of laboratory work may include testing soil samples for 
contaminants, concrete testing or testing for asbestos. It is not known at this time what 
testing will be required, therefore this requirement was included as an allowance. 

6. RFP page 23 under XIII contract period:  The PM contract is to last initially for 2 years, 
then it could be subject to amendments. The text goes on to say that the total time 
duration and cost linked to time should be based upon the full program duration. This 
could mean up to 7 years for work relating to the Flood Wall, and 6 years for the Power 
Plant. Preparing costs linked to the duration includes considering escalation in hourly 
rates, and the estimate will have to include costs for up to 7 years.  Is this the intention of 
the PVSC? Or, does the PVSC want to see a cost estimate based upon a 2 year contract?  

Answer: The cost proposal is to be based on 7 years. The proposal may include annual 
adjustments to salary rates, once per year, beginning in year 3. Annual rate adjustments 
should not be greater than the "Engineer's Pay Index of the U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics -Employment Cost Index ("ECI") for Professional Specialty and Technical 
Workers Wages and Salaries" or 3% per year whichever is less. 

7. RFP page 24 under XIV Costs requests Attachment C and Attachment D to include 
hourly rates and costs. Are expenses like travel to be included in the hourly rate?  How 
would you like such costs expressed?  

Answer: Travel expenses will be reimbursed under Task 4. 

RFP Revision: Within Section VIII, Task 4, on page 22 of 32, delete: 
“Task 4 does not include travel expenses. Travel expenses shall be 
included in the overall project cost.” 

 
8. RFP page 26 under XIXC the work hours for the site are stated as 8:15 a.m. to 4:15 p.m.  

This equates to a 7-hour work day.  Our normal work day is 8 hours for salaried staff.  Do 
we need to adjust our estimate based upon a 7-hour work day?  

Answer: No. Estimates should be based on an eight (8) hour work day. 



9. Does an updated COI need to be included with RFP if already submitted with SOQ? 
Same for Attachment A if already submitted with SOQ?  

Answer: If there has been a change to, or if there is a new Conflict of Interest that was 
not present at the time of the SOQ, it should be identified. The Insurance Certificate shall 
be submitted satisfying the requirements outlined in the RFP, Section II. 

END OF CLARIFICATION NO. 1 
 
Note: 
This Clarification is issued for the purpose of amending the requirements of the RFP for Program 
Manager Services and is hereby made part of the said RFP to the same extent as though it were 
originally included therein. Please complete ATTACHMENT B, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF 
RECEIPT OF CLARIFICATIONS, of the RFP and submit with your proposal. 



 
“Protecting Public Health and the Environment” 

 
 
Passaic Valley Sewerage Commission     December 30, 2014 
600 Wilson Avenue 
Newark, New Jersey 07105 
 

CLARIFICATION NO. 2 
 

TO ALL HOLDERS OF PVSC REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE  
PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 
In response to requests to extend the deadline for responses to the RFP for Program Management 
Services, the deadline has been revised to January 16, 2015, at 11:00 am EST. Please note the 
following changes to the RFP: 

On Page 2 of 32, replace the third (3rd) paragraph with the following: 
 

“The original and five copies of the proposal must be received at PVSC’s 
Warehouse Building, 600 Wilson Avenue, Newark, New Jersey 07105 (the 
“Warehouse Building”) on or before January 16, 2015 at 11:00 am EST. All 
proposals must be submitted in the form required as set forth herein.  No late 
submissions will be accepted.  All properly submitted proposals will be opened on 
January 16, 2015, at 11:00 am EST in the PVSC Training Room at the 
Warehouse Building.  At that time and place, the sealed proposals will be publicly 
opened, announced and recorded.” 
 

On Page 22 of 32, Section IX, PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS, 
replace the first (1st) paragraph with the following: 

“All proposals in response to this request shall be addressed to Michael 
DeFrancisci, Executive Director, Passaic Valley Sewerage Commission, and 
delivered not later than 11:00 am EST on January 16, 2014. The original and 
five (5) copies of the proposal will be required. (Note: SOQ on record, not 
required to be resubmitted).” 

END OF CLARIFICATION NO. 2 
 
Note: 
This Clarification is issued for the purpose of amending the requirements of the RFP for Program 
Manager Services and is hereby made part of the said RFP to the same extent as though it were 
originally included therein. Please complete ATTACHMENT B, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF 
RECEIPT OF CLARIFICATIONS, of the RFP and submit with your proposal. 



 
“Protecting Public Health and the Environment” 

 
 
Passaic Valley Sewerage Commission     January 5, 2015 
600 Wilson Avenue 
Newark, New Jersey 07105 
 

CLARIFICATION NO. 3 
 

TO ALL HOLDERS OF PVSC REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE  
PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 
1. Question – Under sub task 3.2 (page 14) the costs for the trailer and utilities is to be paid 

for under a separate allowance. Please clarify if the costs are included in allowance items 
under Tasks 4 through 7, or, will they be under a separate allowance not stated in the 
RFP? 

Answer: The costs of the trailer and utilities will be paid for under a separate allowance 
not stated in the RFP. These costs should not be included in your proposal. 

2. Question - Will the trailer be available for the Program Manager to use at Notice To 
Proceed (NTP) or will there be a temporary location available until the trailer space is 
available?  If the space is not available at NTP, when does PVSC anticipate the WITCO 
land and trailer being available to the Program Manager? 
 
Answer: An existing trailer will be available for the Program Manager to use temporarily 
upon NTP. This existing trailer will be used until the Program Manager’s trailer is 
available at the WITCO property. The time frame for the WITCO property will be based 
on the completion of Subtask 3.2 – Staging Plan and Program Field Office. 

3. Question – For the Program Manager’s trailer, is there an internet provider that PVSC 
can recommend or have a particular preference in using?  

 
Answer: Internet access will be provided at no cost through the PVSC internal network. 
 

4. Question – Can you furnish a copy of PVSC’s standard boilerplate contract terms and 
conditions? 
 
Answer: See Clarification 3 Attachment. 

END OF CLARIFICATION NO. 3 
 
Note: 
This Clarification is issued for the purpose of amending the requirements of the RFP for Program 
Manager Services and is hereby made part of the said RFP to the same extent as though it were 
originally included therein. Please complete ATTACHMENT B, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF 
RECEIPT OF CLARIFICATIONS, of the RFP and submit with your proposal. 








































































































